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2021
135,131,751 95.01
4,461,962 3.14
2,639,358 1.86
142,233,071
11,999 100.00
2021

Signum homentum Ltd 0 | 202379729 | 136,870,000 | 105,951,067 | 135,131,751 | 95.01

09/29/2023
Quartix Financial
Products 11 Ltd 2023/9/29 | 136,870,000 | 29,687,103 4,461,962 3.14
09/29/2023
0.895
0.30
0.10
2021
2021
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2021

2016 11 288,129,719 24,307 0.9480 80
2017 11 227,064,188 19,155 0.9827 83
2018 11 185,783,099 15,673 0.9739 82
2019 11 175,170,936 14,777 1.0254 87
2020 11 156,984,941 13,243 1.0248 86
2020 166,289,060 14,028 1.0198 86
165,908,167 13,996 1.0190 86

164,231,506 13,855 1.0204 86

164,323,836 13,862 1.0237 86

162,803,866 13,734 1.0228 86

162,264,111 13,689 1.0235 86

10 162,236,430 13,686 1.0252 86

11 156,984,941 13,243 1.0248 86

12 152,514,535 12,866 1.0254 87

2021 150,932,286 12,733 1.0249 86
146,779,345 12,382 1.0176 86

142,233,071 11,999 1.0203 86
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325,260,000
(325, 260,000)
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(21,330,000)

303,930,000
(303,930,000)

0 72,870,000 231,060,000
©) (72,870,000) (231,060,000)
0 40,310,000 190,750,000
©) (40,310,000) (190,750,000)
0 19,930,000 170,820,000
©) (19,930,000) (170,820,000)
0 17,640,000 153,180,000
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15 10
2020 11 30
2020 11 30 2019 11 30

,16 154,643,424 13,045,719 174,184,992 14,694,246
24,700 2,084
2,089,776 176,294 913,590 77,070
7,481,576 631,146 4,961,564 418,558
164,214,776 13,853,159 180,084,846 15,191,958
5,025,930 423,987 2,523,599 212,891
203,601 17,176 237,067 19,999
5,229,531 441,163 2,760,666 232,890
10 153,180,000 12,922,265 170,820,000 14,410,375
5,805,245 489,730 6,504,180 548,693
12 158,985,245 13,411,995 177,324,180 14,959,068
164,214,776 13,853,159 180,084,846 15,191,958

10 153,180,000 170,820,000
12 1.0378 88 1.0380 88

60/197



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15 10
2020 11 30
2020 2019
1,815,686 153,171 1,987,252 167,645
127,400 10,747 373,900 31,542
527 44 7,024 593
1,943,613 163,963 2,368,176 199,779
58,724 4,954 61,290 5,170
162,902 13,742 179,213 15,118
651,608 54,970 716,851 60,474
407,255 34,356 448,032 37,79
363,449 30,661 378,665 31,944
125,800 10,612 370,300 31,239
195,483 16,491 215,055 18,142
8,750 738 22,295 1,881
42,204 3,560 46,177 3,895
2,016,175 170,085 2,437,878 205,659
(72,562) (6,121) (69,702) (5,880)
598,575 50,496 295,215 24,904
(752,208) (63,456) 9,015,660 760,561
(74,735) (6,305) 98,764 8,332
(228,368) (19,265) 9,409,639 793,797
(300,930) (25,386) 9,339,937 787,917
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15 10
2020 11 30
10 10

190,750,000 190,750,000 16,091,670 (2,862,713) (241,498) 187,887,287 15,850,172
(19,930,000) (19,930,000) (1,681,295) 26,956 2,274 (19,903,044) (1,679,021)
9,339,937 787,917 9,339,937 787,917

170,820,000 170,820,000 14,410,375 6,504,180 548,693 177,324,180 14,959,068
(17,640,000) (17,640,000) (1,488,110) (398,005) (33,576) (18,038,005) (1,521,686)
(300,930) (25,386) (300,930) (25,386)

153,180,000 153,180,000 12,922,265 5,805,245 489,730 158,985,245 13,411,995
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15 10
2020 11 30
2020 2019

(300,930) (25,386) 9,339,937 787,917
(1,816,213) (153,216) (1,994,276) (168,237)
(127,400) (10,747) (373,900) (31,542)
125,800 10,612 370,300 31,239
(33, 466) (2,823) (12,200) (1,029)
(2,152,209) (181,560) 7,329,861 618,347
1,816,213 153,216 1,994,810 168,282
(598,575) (50,496) (295,215) (24,904)
752,208 63,456 (9,015,660) (760,561)
18,085,949 1,525,731 19,525,143 1,647,141
17,903,586 1,510,347 19,538,939 1,648,305
(15,383,574) (1,297,758)  (18,022,915) (1,520,413)
(15,383,574) (1,297,758)  (18,022,915) (1,520,413)
2,520,012 212,588 1,516,024 127,892
4,961,564 418,558 3,445,540 290,666
7,481,576 631,146 4,961,564 418,558
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 November 2020

Motes 30 November 30 November

2020 M9

AU AL
ASSETS
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 816 154,643,424 174,184,992
Redemption fee receivable 7 - 24,700
Amount due from broker 2,089,770 913,590
Cash and cash equivalents @ TA%1.570 4,961,564
TOTAL ASSETS 164,214,770 180,084,846
LIABILITIES
Redemption pavable 5,025,930 2,523,509
Accounts pavable and accrued labalities 1 203,601 237067
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5229531 2,760,660
EQUITY
Unitholders® capital 10 133, 180,000 170,820,000
Surplus 5,803,245 6,504,180
TOTAL EQUITY 12 158,985,245 177,324,180
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 164,214,776 180,084,846
KNUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 14 133, 180,000 170, 820,000
NWET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT 12 AUDNLOETE ALUD1.0380

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
5
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF

WINTON 15-10 (ALY
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the vear ended 30 November 2020

INCOME

Interest income from performance linked notes
Redemption fes income

Interest income from bank deposits

Total mvestment imcome

EXPENSES

Audit fee

Agent company’s fee
Distributor’s fee
Investment advisor fees
Management fee
Redemption fee expense
Trustee and trustes’s delegate lees
Legal fes

Other operating expenses
Total operating expenses

MET LOSS BEFORE INVESTMENT AND
EXCHAMNGE DIFFERENCES

INVESTMENT AND EXCHANGE INFFERENCES

MNet realised gain on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Met change in unrealised (loss) gain on financial asscts at fair
value through profit or loss

Net foreign exchange (loss) gain

NET COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)TNCOME FOR THE YEAR

Motes

e

o] S S S S

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fnancial statements.
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2020 2019
AUD AUD
1.815.686 1.987.252
127,400 373,900
527 7.024
1.943.613 2.368.176
58,724 61,290
162,902 179.213
651,608 716,851
407,255 448,032
363,449 378,665
125,800 370,300
195,483 215,055
£.750 22,295
42,204 46,177
2016175 2.437.878
{72.562) (69,702)
508,575 295,215
{752,208) 9,015,660
{74.735) 98,764
{228.368) 9,400,630
{300, 9540) 9,339.037
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AU

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the vear ended 30 November 2020

Mumber af Unithalders’ Surplus/
units outstanding capital (Deficit) Total equity
AUD AUD AUD
{MNote 10) (Mote 109
Balance at 1 December 2018 190, TS0,000 190, 750,000 (2.862.713) 187,887,287
Redemption of umts {115, 530, 0007 {19,930,000) 26,956 (19,905, 044
Met comprehensive income - - 0.339.937 0.339.037
At 30 MNovember 2019 and |
December 2019 170,820,000 1770, 8 20, (6K 6,504, 1 80y 177,324,180
Redemption of umits (17,640,000} (17640, 0000 {398,005) [18,038.005)
Met comprehenzve loss - - {3000 530 {3000 530
An 30 November 2020 153, 1 80,000 153, 180, (0X) 58005, 245 | 55 985,245

The aceompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
7
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AU

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the vear ended 30 November 2020

Moles 20020 20019
ALD ALTD
CASH FLOWS FROM OPEEATING ACTIVITIES
Net comprehensive (loss) ineome for the year (300,930) 0.339,937
Adjustments for:
Interest income (1.816,213) {1.994,276)
Redemption fee income 7 (127,400 {373.900)
Redemplion fee expense T 125,800 370,300
Diecrease in accounts pavable and accrued liabilities (33.466) (12,2000
Cash (used in)/ generated from operations (152,209 7.329.861
Interest received 1,816,213 1,994,810
Met realised gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss { 5948,575) (295,215)
Met change in unrealised loss/{gain) on financial assets al fair
value through profit or loss T52.208 (5,015, 660)
Progeeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 18,085,940 19,525,143
Met cash flows generated from operating activities 17,903,586 19,538,939
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payiments on redemption of units (15.383.374) (18.022.915)
Met cash flows used in financing activitics (15,383,574) (18.022915)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,520,012 1,516,024
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 4.961.564 3445540
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 9 7481576 4,961,564

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AU

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2020

L. THE TRUST

Philesophic 2 Investment Trust (the “Trust™) is an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a
master trust deed dated 20 March 2015 under the laws of the Cayman Islands, regulated mutual fund
under the Cayman Islands Mutual Funds Act (2020 Revision) and registered with the Cayman Islands
Monetary Authority, entered into between 10) EQ) Management Bermuda Limited (the *Manager™) and
HEBC Trustes (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee™). The Trust has been established as an umbrella unit
trust with the ability to create and establish separate portfolio or series trust to which assets and
liabilities attributable to such series trust will be applisd.

Bond Plus Fund Linked to the Performance of Winton 1510 { AU (the “Senes Trust™) 5 a series
trust of the Trust constituted pursuant to the master trust deed and a supplemental trust deed dated 12
August 2015 made between the Trustee and the Manager, As at 30 November 2000, two (2019 two)
series trusts had been established,

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to pursue capital gain over the medium to long term,
while aiming to ensurc a net asset value per unit at the time of the maturity date that is not less than
100% of the Australian Dollar (“AUD™) demominated offer price. The Manager aims to achieve such
investment objective by investing all of the proceeds from the issue of units in 8 vear Australian Dollar
denominated zero coupon notes (each a “Fero Coupon Note™) issued by Signum Momentum Limited
{the “Zero Coupon MNote Issuer™) and 8 yvear Austrahan dollar denominated performance hinked notes
{each a “Performance Linked Note™) issued by Cuartix Financial Products 11 Limited (the
“Performance Linked Note Issuer™)., The fero Coupon Notes seck to provide their holders with
protection of 100% of the Fero Coupon Notes” pancipal amount {in Avstralian Dollars ) of such holders
hold their Zero Coupon Motes until the note matunty date. The remaining net proceeds from the issue
of units, after investment in the Zero Coupon Notes and pavment of certain expenses, will be invested
in the Performance Linked MNotes, Investment in the Performance Linked Notes will provide investors
wilh exposure to the performance of MA WCM FP Limited (the “Underlying Fund™).

The Series Trust shall terminate on the earlier of 13 October 2023, or the occumrence of any of the
other fermination cvents sel out in master nust deed.

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Series Trust has adopted the following new and revised [FRES, that have been issued and effective
for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 December 20019 in the current vear’s financial
statements, which is applicable to the Series Trust,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AU

MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended 30 November 2020
2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued )

Mew and amended standards and interpretations issued and effective for the financial vear beginning
1 December 2019 {continued)

TFRIC fnterpretation 23 Uncertaimty over fncome Tax Treatment

The interpretation addresses the accounting for income laxes when lax trealments invelve uncertainly
that affects the apphication of Intermational Accounting Standards (“TAS™) 12 Income Taxes. The
interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of TAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest and penaltics associated with uncertain tax treatments, The
interpretation specifically addresses the following:

Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

*  The assumptions an entity makes about the exammmation of tax treatments by taxabion authonbes
How an entity determines taxable profits (1ax losses), tax bases, unused tax losses, unuscd tax
credits and tax rates

«  How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

The Series Trust determines whether Lo consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
with one or more other uncertain fax treatments and uses the approach that better predicts the
resolution of the uncertanty.

The Series Trust applies significant judgement in identifying uncerlainlics over income lax trealments.
The interpretation has had no dimpact on the financial statements of the Series Trusl

Amendments to IAS [ and 45 8 Definition of Material

In October 2008, the TASE ssued amendments to TAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and TAS
8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Fstimales and Ermors (o align the definition of
‘material” across the standards and to clarify certain aspects of the defimition. The new definition states
that, *Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general-purpose financial statements make on the hasis
of those financial statements, which provide fimancial information about a specific reportimg entity.”

The amendments to the definition of material has had no significant impact on the Scrics Trust’s
financial statements.

There are no other new standards and amendments to existing standards that are effective for annual
periods beginning on 1 December 2009 that have a material effect on the financial statements of the
Series Trust.

Mew and amended standards and ainterpretations ssued but not vet effective for the Hinancial year
inning |1 January 2019 and not carly

There are no standards and interpretations that are issued. but not yel effective. up to the date of
issuanee of the Series Trust's financial statements that would be expected to have a significant impact
on the Series Trust,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AU

MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended 30 November 2020
3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Series Trust's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilitics
and the sccompanying disclosures, Uncertainty aboul these assumptions and estimates could result in
oulcomes that could require a material adjustment 1o the camrving amount of the assel or lability
affected in future periods,

Jurd gemnents
In the process of applying the Series Trust's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
slatements:

(roing comcern

The Series Trust's management has made an assessment of the Series Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern and 15 salisficd that the Serics Trust has the resources (o continue in business for the
foresecable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertaintics that may cast
significant doult upon the Series Trust’s ability o conlinue as a going concemn. Therefore, the
financaal statements are prepared on the gomg concem bass,

Taxes

Uncertaintics exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and changes in tax
laws om forcign withholding tax. Given the wide range of intemational investments, differences ansing
between the actual imvestment income and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
assumplions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax expense already recorded. The Series Trust
exlablishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for pessible consequences of audits by the tax
authorities of the respective countries in which it invests. The amounts of such provisions are based
on various factors, such as expenience of previous L audits and differing interprefations of Lax
regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority, Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a wide varety of ssues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective
investment s domicile. As the Series Trust assesses the probabality for litigation and subsequent cash
outflow with respect to taxes as remode, no contingent liability has been recogniscd.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board (“1ASBE”). and interpretations issued by Intermational Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committes (“IFRIC™) of the IASB. The accounting policies adopted are
consistent with those of the previous financial vear, other than as disclosed in MNote 2,

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a histonical cost basis, except for financial assets al
fair value through profit or loss that have been measured at fair value, The financial statements are
presented in AUTY, which is also the Series Trust's functional cumency, and all values are rounded to

the nearest AUD except where otherwise indicated.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AU

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recopnised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Series Trust and
when the revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income is recognised on a time apportioned basis
taking mio account the principal outstanding and the effective inferest rate apphcable.

Financial instrumenis

(i Classification

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Senes Trust classifies s financial assets and financial habilities at
initial recognition into the categonies of financial assets and financial liabilitics discussed below,

Finaneial assets
The Series Trust classifics its financial assets as subscquent]ly measured at amortised cost or measured
at far valug through profit or loss (*FVPL") on the basis of bath:

+  The entity’s business model for managing the financial asscts
+  The contractual cash flow characieristics of the financial asset

Fimgneial assets measured af amortised cost

A debt instrument is measured al amortised cost if il is held within a business model whese objective
15 to hold fmancial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. The Serics Trust includes in this category are redemption fee receivable, amount
due from broker, cash and cash equivalents,

Fingancial assets measured af FVPL
A financial assct is measured at FVPL if:

{a) Iis contractual terms do not give rise o cash flows on specilied dates that are solely pavments of
principal and interest (“SFPPI7) on the principal amount outstanding: or

(b} It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash Nows,
or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell; or

() At initial recognition, it 15 imevocably designated as measured at FVPL when doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise anse
from measuring assets or liahilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.

The Series Trust includes in this category:

s bt instruments. These inchede investments that are held under a business model to manage them
on a fair value basis for investment income and fair value gains,

Financial iahlities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

This eategory includes all financial liabilities, other than those measured at FVPL, The Series Trust
includes in this category are redemption payable, accounts payable and acerued liabilities.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AU

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2020

4. SUMNMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments {continued)

(1) Recognition

The Series Trust recognises a financial asset or lability when, and only when. it becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delvery
of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace
{regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, Le. the date that the Series Trust commils to
purchase or sell the assel.

(iiih Initial measurement
Financial assets at FVPL are initially recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value, All
transaction costs for such instruments are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Financial assets (other than those classified as at FVPL) are measured initially at their fair value plus
any direetly attributable incremental costs of acquisition or issue,

vl Sebaequent measuremant

After imitial measurement, the Serics Trust measures financial instruments which are classified as at
FWPL at fair value, Subscquent changes in the fair value of those financial instruments are recorded
in ‘net gain or loss on financial assets at FVPL” in the statement of comprehensive income. Interest
and dividends camed or paid on these instruments are recorded separately in inferest revenue or
expense and dividend revenue or eopense in the statement of comprehensive income,

Financial liabilitics, other than these classified as at FVPL, are measured at amaortised cost using the
effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised. as well as through the amortisation process.

The effective interest method s a method of caleulating the ameortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective inferest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorier peniod, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial lability, When calculating the effective interest
rale, the Series Trust estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instruments, but does nol consider future credit losses. The caleulation includes all fees pad or
received between partics to the contract that are an inteeral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts,
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For the vear ended 30 November 2020

4 SUMNMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments {continued)

(vl Derecaonition

A financial asset {or, where applicable a part of a financial assel or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where:

+  The rights to receive cash Nlows from the asset have expired; or

+  The Seres Trust has transferred its rights lo receive cash flows from the assel or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without matenal delay to a third party under a
“pass-through™ arrangement; and

+  Either {a) the Series Trust has transferred substantially all the rsks and rewards of the asset. or
(b} the Series Trust has neither transterred nor retamed substantially all the risks and rewards of
the assel, but has transfared control of the assel.

When the Series Trust has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the assel nor transferred control of the asset, the assel 15 recognised Lo the extent of the
Series Trust’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Series Trust also recognises an
associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Series Trust has retained.

The Series Trust derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expired,

Fair value measurement

The Series Trust measures financial instruments at fair value at of each reporting penod.  Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumplion that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the hability takes place ether:

+  In the principal market for the asset or lability, or
+  Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantapeous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous markel must be accessible to the Senes Trust.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured wsing the assumptions that market participants
would use when pn'ui.ng the assel or |i3bi]i.1."l.". ansuming that market partieipants act m ther economie
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assel takes into account a market participant’s ability to

generate cconomic benefits by using the asset m its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

91/197



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (ALY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2020

4 SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued )

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market prices on a recognised exchange
and valued at last traded price or sourced from a reputable broker or counterparty, in the case of non-
exchange traded instruments, at the reporting date without any deduction for estimated future selling

ciosls,

For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair valoe is determined by using
valuation fechniques deemed to be appropriate in the circumstances. Valuation technigques include the
markel approach (i.e., using recent amn’s length markel transactions adjusted az necessary and
reference to the current market value of another instrument that is substantially the same) and the
ineome approach (Le., discounted cash flow analyvsis and option pnicing models making as much use

af available and supportable market data as possible).

Al assets and habihiies for which fair value 15 measurad or disclosed m the hnancial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, deseribed as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurcment as a whaole:

+  Level 1 = Cuoted (unadjusted ) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

+  Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement s directly or indirectly observable

+  Level 3 = Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the Fair value
measurement s unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Series
Trust determinegs whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categonsation (based on the lowest level wput that 15 sigmficant to the far value measurement as a

whale) at the end of each reporting period.

For financial assets at amortised cost, impairment allowanees are recognised under the general
approach where expected eredil losses are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures where there
has not been a significant increase in credit nsk since initial recogmtion, the Senes Trust s regquired
to provide for credit losses that result from possible default events within the next 12 months. For
those credil exposures where there has been a significant increase in credil risk since inilial
recognition. a loss allowance s required for credit losses expected over the remaiming life of the
exposure imespective of the timing of the default.
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For the vear ended 30 November 2020

4 SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency transaclions
The Seres Trust's functional and presentation cumeney s the AUTY The funchional curreney reflects
the currency in which the Series Trust primarily generates and expends cash from its activities.

Transactions during the period in currencies other than the functional currency are recorded at the
rates of eochange prevailing at the date of the transaction, Monctary assets and liabilitics denominated
in forcign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting period,
Realised and unrealised exchange gains or losses on foreign currency transactions are charged or
credited as profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive ineome as net foreign exchange gains or
losses.

Mon-monetary ilems that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the imtial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined,

The rate of exchange in effect at 30 November 2020 was AUDD = USDO. T390 (2019 AUDI1
USD0.6775).

Related parties
A party 1= considered to be related to the Senes Trustif:

{a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person
(i} has control or joint control over the Series Trust:
{11} has significant influence over the Senes Trust; or,
() 15 a member of the key management personnel of the Series Trust or of a parent of the
Series Trust,
ar

(k) the party 1s an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) thecntity and the Series Trust are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity {or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

{ii1)  the entity and the Series Trust are joint ventures of the same third party:

(v} one entity 15 a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity:

{v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of emplovees of either the
Series Trust or an entity related o the Series Trust,

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

{vii) aperson identificd in (a)iip has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity {or of a parent of the entity): and,

(viii) the entity, or any member of the Series Trust of which it 5 a parl, provides key
management personnel services to the Series Trust.
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For the vear ended 30 November 2020

4. SUNMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and eash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents are defined as cash at bank, cash on hand, time deposits, and short-term
highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amounis of cash and subject to insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash at bank is carried at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents denomimated i other currency are translated mio AUD at the applicable
rate of exchange at the reporting date,

For the purpose of the statement of cash ows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank.

Unitholders® capital
Redeemable units are classified as equity instruments when:
*  The redeemable units entitle the holder to a pro rata share of the Series Trust's net assets in
the event of the Series Trust's liquidation.
#  The redeemable units are in the class of instruments that 15 subordinate to all other classes of
msiruments.
*  The redeemable umits mn the class of mstruments that 15 subordinate 1o all other classes of
mstruments have identical features.
*#  The redeemable units do not include any contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset other than the holder™s rights to a pro rata share of the Series Trust's net assels,
«  The total expected cash flows attributable fo the redeemable units over the life of the
instrument are based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised nel assels
or the change in the for value of the recogmsed and unrecognised net assets of the Senes
Trust over the life of the msirument.

In addition to the redecmable units having all the above features, the Serics Trust must have no other
fmancial mstrument or contract that has:
#  Total cash flows based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net
assets or the change in the fair value of the recognised and unrecognised net assets of the
Series Trust, and.
#  The effect of substantially restricting or fixing the residual return to the instrument holders.

The Senes Trust continuously assesses the classification of the redeemable participating units. If the
redeemable participating units cease to have all the features or meet all the conditions set out o be
classified as equity, the Serics Trust will reclassifv them as financial liabilitics amd measure them at
fair value at the date of reclassification, with any differences from the previous carrying amount
recognised in equity. If the redeemable units 1u'h-rvL.L|u.cnl]1r have all the features. and meet the conditions
to be classificd as equity, the Series Trust will reclassify them as equity instruments and measure them
at the carrving amount of the liabilitics at the date of the reclassification.

The issuance, acquisition, and cancellation of the redeemable participating units are accounted for as
equity transactions. Upon ssuance of units, the consideration received 15 mcluded in equity,

No gain or loss s recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale,

issuance, redemplion, or cancellation of the Senes Trust's own equity instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2020

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provision for fulure expenses for the Series Trust

As provided for within the Offering Memorandum  (the “Offering Memorandum™), upon its
extablishment, the Series Trust has provided for certain fees, including administration fees, audit fees,
and other operaling expenses, payable to serviee providers for the tem of the Series Trust as
determmed by the Manager. This up-front provision of fees s miended to ensure that continuing
investors are not disadvantaged when redemptions occur leaving them with a disproportionate share
of these costs which were committed at the launch of the Series Trust. These provisions have been
fully reflected in the net asset value published during the current accounting period.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with [FRS, Certain of these provisions represent
provisions for expenses relating to services that will be provided to the Series Trust over its life and
therefore are required to be recognised over the life of the Series Trust in the period that they relate to
in aceordance with IFRSs.

Thercfore, where these provisions relate to expenses to be incurred in future periods, these have been
excluded from the statement of comprehensive income and the statement of financial position. As the
exclusion of these provisions in the statement of comprehensive income and statement of Ninancial
position results in a difference in comparison to the published net asset value for the reasons stated
above, a reconciliation has been provided in Note 12 to the financial statements,

MNet gain or loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
MNet gains or losses on financial assets at FVPL are changes in the fair value of financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL and exclude interest income.

Unrealised gains and losses comprise changes in the fair value of financial instruments for the period
and from reversal of the prior peniod’s unrealised gains and losses for financial instruments which
were realised in the reporting peniod,

Realised gains and losses on disposals of financial instruments classificd as at fair value throwgh profit
or loss are caleulated wsing the weighted average method. They represent the difference between an
instrument’s initial camrving amount and disposal amount,

5 INTEREST INCOME FROM PERFORMANCE LINKED NOTES

Pursuant to Appendix 2 of the Offering Memorandum the holders, paymenis to the holdes of the
Performance Linked Notes will oceur on the first Business Day falling on or prior to the 15th calendar
day of cach month and the last Business Day of each month from 30 October 200 5 to the Mote Matunity
Date m arvear at the rate of 0.895% per annum on the Principal Amount of the Perfformance Linked
Motes plus an additional amount of 0,30% per annum of that portion of the Principal Amount of the
Performance Linked Motes which i equal to or less than AU TOO000, 000 and 0. 10% per annum of
that porfion of the Prancipal Amouwnt of the Perfformance Linked Motes which exeseds
AU 00,000,000,

The interest income from performance linked notes for the year tolaled AUINLB15.686 (2019:
AUTYL98T 252).
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For the vear ended 30 November 2020

() FEES

. e .
The Trostee and the Trustee™s Delegate are entitled to receive a trustee fee of 0.12% per annum of the
affer price multiplied by the number of units outstanding (the “Fee Amount™) accrued and caleulated
on each valwation day and payvable monthly in amears, subject fo a minimum quarterly fee of
AUDI0MY. The Trustee and the Trustee's Delegate will be entitled to receive transaction and
processing fees at normal commercial rates. Furthermore, the Trustes will be entitled to receive an
ineeplion fee of AUDS.000 payable as soon as possible afler the initial closing date. For the custody
of the Trust's assets, the Trustes and the Trustee’s Delegate will also be entitled (o receive a custodian
fee of (,025% per annum of the asscts under custody, acerued and caleulated as at cach valuation day
and payable monthly in arrears.,

The trustee and trustee’s delegate fees for the vear totaled AUDIP3.483 (2019: AUDZ15,055) of
which AUTIS. 82T was payable at 30 November 2020 (2009 AUTN9.850) and 15 included in accounts
payable and accrued liabilitics.

Apent company’s fee

Mitsubishi UF] Morgan Stanley Sccuritics Co., Ltd (the * Agent Company and Distributor™) is entitled
to receive a fee of 0.10% per annum of the Fee Amount acerued and caleulated as at cach valuation
day and pavable monthly in arrears.

The agent company’s fee for the vear totaled AUDIGZO02 (2019: AUDITO213) of which
AUDIZ, 189 was payable at 30 Nevember 2020 (2019 AUDIG.542) and is included in accounts
payable and acerued liabilitics,

Distributor’s fiee
The Agent Company and Distributer is also entitled 1o receive a distiibutor fee of 0.40% per annum
of the Fee Amount acerved and caleulated as at cach valuation day and payable monthly i amrears.

The distributor’s fee for the vear totaled AUDGS1,G0E (2009 AUDTIOE51) of which AUDS2, 758
was payable at 30 November 2020 (20019 AUTNG, 166) and s meluded in accounts payable and
acerued liabilities.

Management foe

The Manager is entitled to receive a management fee of 0.30% per annum of that pant of the Fee
Amount which 15 equal to or less than AUTYIO0000,000 and 0. 10% per annum of that part of the Fee
Amount which iz greater than AUDTO0O00000 accrued and caleulated on each valuation day,
pavable monthly in arrears and subject to a minimum annual fee of AUD20,000. The Manager will
also be entitled to receive oul of the assets of the Series Trust an inception fee of USDG0L000 payable
as soon as possible afler the mital closing date.

The management fee for the vear totaled AUDE03,449 (2009 AUDETE6635) of which AUDE0,129
was payable at 30 November 2020 (20019 AUDZS.720) and is included in accounts payable and
accrued liahilitics.
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i, FEES (continued)

i MRS
Mitsubishi UFJ Kokusai Asset Management Co., Ltd. (the “Investment Advisor™) is entitled to receive
a fee of 0.25% per annum of the Fee Amount aconwed and caleulated as al each valuation day and
pavable monthly in arrears.

The investment advisor fee for the vear totaled AUDM0T255 (2019 AUDHB.032) of which
AUD32972 was payvable at 30 November 2020 (2019: AUD41354) and is included in accounts
pavable and acerued habilities.

T REDEMPTION FEES

mntian fee .
Pursuant to Appendix 2 of the Offering Memorandum, the Manager may deduct from the repurchase
proceeds payable in respeet of each unit repurchased a repurchase fee for the account of the Series
Trust caleulated in accordance with the followimg shding scale:

+  From the commencement of the Series Trust to, and including, the first business day in November
2017, this fee shall be 3% of an amount caleulated by multiplving the number of units being
repurchased by the offer price.

+  From and including the day following the first business day of November 2017 to, and including
the first business day in November 2019, this fee shall be 2% of an amount caleulated by
multiplying the number of umis being repurchased by the offer price.

#  From and including the day following the first business day in Movember 2019 to, and including
the first business dav in MNovember 2020, this fee shall be 1% of an amount calculated by
multiplying the number of units being repurchased by the offer price.

#  Afier the first business day in November 2020, no repurchase fee will be charged.

enon fie -

Pursuant to the note terms for the Performance Linked Note, the Performance Linked Note Issuer will

charge an early redemption fee in accordance with a sliding scale:

*  From and including the issue date (20 Oct 2015) of the Performanee Linked Note to and including
the last business day in October 2017 this fee shall be 3% of the principal amount 1o be redeamed
as of the relevant secondary market trade date,

+  From and excluding last business day in October 2017 to, and including the last business day in
October 2019, this fee shall be 2% of the principal amount to be redeemed as of the relevant
secondary market trade date.

+  From and excluding the last business day in October 2009 1o, and including the last business day
in October 2020, this fee shall be 1% of the principal amount to be redecmed as of the relevant
seeondary market trade date,

#  Thereafter, no carly redemption fioe will be charged,

With regards to repurchase of units and note trades around the vear end date, the trade date of the
Performance Linked Note being the 13th of October and the repurchase date of the units being the
12th of October, the acerual of the redemplion fee expense and that of the redemplion fee income are
recognised in different fimancial periods,
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T REDEMPTION FEES (continued)

Consequently, redemption fee receivable and redemption fee pavable are recognised for the unsettled
repurchase of units and note trades, respectively, as at the end of the reporting period.

The redemption fee income for the vear totaled AUD 27400 (2019 AUDET3, 9000 of which AUDNI
was receivable at 30 November 2020 (2019 AUD24.700). The redemption fee expense for the vear
totaled AU 25,800 (2019 AUD3T0.300).

8 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2020 ae
ALD AL
Financial assets at FVPL, at cost 149,601,360 168,390,720
Unrealised gain 5042064 5.794.272
Financial assets at FVPL, at fair value 154643 424 174,184,992

The Performance Linked Note 15 Inked to the peformance of the Underlving Fund. The retum from
the Performance Linked MNote will be determined by reference to the value of a notional investment in
the Underlying Fund, The Performance Linked Mote has been issued by the Performance Linked Note
Issuer with a matunty date of 29 September 2023,

The payment by the Zero Coupon Note Issuer of the redemption amount of the Zero Coupon Note at
scheduled maturity date is secured by a swap, under which the Zero Coupon Note Issuer pays the issue
proceeds of the Zero Coupon Mote to swap counterparty on the issue date and receives from swap
counterparty the scheduled redemption price multiphed by the principal amount on scheduled matunty
date. The Zero Coupon MNote will be redeemed on their scheduled maturity date on 29 September 2023
at 100% of their principal amount,

The breakdown of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is as follows:

Holdings Fairvalue  %aof net
As at 30 November 2020 AL asscls
Fero Coupon MNole 150,960,000 149,299,440 03.91%
Performance Linked MNote 150,960,000 5.343.984 3.30%
Tutal 154,643 424 97.27%

Holdings Fair value %o of net
As at 30 MNovember 2019 ALD assels
Fero Coupon MNole 169 920,000 162,205,632 91.47%
Performance Linked Note 165 920,000 11,979,360 . 76%
Tutal 174, 184,992 Q8. 23%
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For the vear ended 30 November 2020

o CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 30 Movember 2020, the cash at bank of AUDT 481,576 (2019 AUD4.961.564) represented an
interest bearing ALUD deposit of AUDGA033TY (2019: AUDET01.856), a United States Dollar
(USET) deposit of USD300,924 (2019 USD3539.039), a Greal Britain Pound (“GBP™) deposit of
GEP49.0T3 (2019 GBPA9.059) and a non-inferest bearing Japanese Yen (“TPY") deposit of
TPY 44,700,805 (2019 TPY4T,189.605). All deposits were placed with The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited (“HSBC™), an affiliated company of the Trustee,

10, UNITHOLDERS CAPITAL

Subscriptions

During the Initial Offer Period. Units may be subseribed for by Eligible Investors at the Offer Price
per Unit. The Initial Offer Pertod will commence on 31 Awgust 20015 and will close on 7 October 2015
{the “Initial Offer Period ™). Units subscribed for during the Initial Offer Period will be issued on the
Initial Closing Diate. The Manager may determing to terminate the initial offer of Units for any reason,

Following the expiration of the Initial Offer Period, Units will not be available for subscription.

Redemptions

Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of Unitholders on cach Repurchase Dav, which
is each Dealing Day and/or such other day or davs as the Manager (in consultation with the Trustee)
mav in any particular case determine, up to and including the Final Repurchase Day.

The minimum number of Units that may be submitted for repurchase as at any Repurchase Day by
any Unitholder is 10,000 Units, with amounts in excess thereol being in integral multiples of 10,000
or such other amounts as the Manager mav defermine.

2020 2019
AL AL
Units in issue:
153, 180,000 (2019: 170,820,000 units of AUI1.00
cach 153, 180,000 1700, 320,040

Number of units Number of unils

HNumber of issued and fully paid units:

At beginning of the vear 170,820,000 190, T30, 0040

Redeemed during the vear {1 7.06b0, D00 { 19,930,000

At end of the year 153, 180,000 170,820,000
22
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11. TANATION

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, the Trust and the Series Trust will not be liable for any
profits or capital gains tax in the Cayman Islands.

The Trust has recerved an undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands in
accordance with Section 81 of the Trusts Law (2011 Revision ) of the Cayvman Islands that, for a peniod
af 50 years from the date of the creation of the Trust, any legislation enacted in the Cayman [slands
imposing lax compuled on profils or income. or compuled on capital assels, gains or apprecialion or
any tax in the nature of estate duty or inhentance tax shall not be applicable to the Trust.

Income from other jurisdictions. including distributions from sceurifics issued in other counirics, may
be subject to withholding or capital gain taxes mposed by such countries. Withholding taxes on the
foreign income may be withheld in accordance with the applicable country’s 1ax rates,

12, RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS PER THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PUBLISHED NET ASSET VALUE

2020 2019
ALUD ALD
Met assets attributable o unitholders per financial
slatements 158,985,245 177,324,180
Adjustment to provisions (see (a) below) {2,000, 304) (2.153.2440
Met assets used for caleulating published net asset value
per unit as at the reporting date 156,984,941 175,170,936
Published number of units n issue 153, 180,000 170,820,000
Published met asset value per unit in issue (sce (b below) AL 0248 AL 0254
Mt asset value per unit in issue (see (c) below) ALIDLOETH ALLO380

(a) The published net asset value per umt ssued s caleulated m accordance with the Offering
Memorandum and includes a provision for the audit fee, legal fee and other operating expenses
throughout the intended life of the Series Trust, instead of those amounts being expensed in the
period they relate to, as required under IFRS.
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12 RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS PER THE
FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS AND PUBLISHED NET ASSET VALUE {continucd)

{b) The caleulation of published net asset value per unit of AU 0248 (20019 AUDLO254) is based
on the net asset value of AUDTS6,984.941 (2019 AUDITE1I70.936) and on the total number of
153, 180,000 (2009 170,820,000 ) units issued at 30 November 2020,

{e) The calculation of net assel value attributable to unitholders per the financial stalements per unil
al AUDLOZTE (20019 AUDLOZED) is based on the nel assel value of AUDIS8985245 (2019:
ALUDNTT,324,180) and on the total number of 153, 130,000 (2009 170,820,000 units 1sswed at 30
MNovember 2020,

—
Ll

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES

Other linancial instruments

The Series Trust's investing activitics expose it to varous types of risk which are associated with the
financial instruments in which it invests, The most important types of financial risk to which the Serics
Trust is exposed are market risk, credit risk, and liguidity risk. Market risk includes foreign currency
risk, price risk and interest rate nsk.

The investment management policy of the Series Trust is determined throwgh the following process:
The Manager provides non=discretionary management of the Series Trust’s assets and primarily will
ensure investments are consistent with the investment objectives of the Sertes Trust and is responsible
for taking reasonable steps and exercising all due diligence to avoid the property of the Seres Trust
being used or invested contrary to the investment and bomrowing limitations set out in the Trust Deed
and the Offering Memorandum. The Board of the Manager has overall responsibility for the
management of the Series Trust structure to the extent of its responsibilities as detaled in the relevant
Trust Deed and Offering Memorandum.

The investment management poliey is non-discretionary: the Series Trust will dnvest its assels on a
1:1 basis between the Zero Coupon Note and the Paformancs Linked Note (collectively the “Notes™).
Consequently, the relum under the Senes Trust depends on the performance of the Performance
Linked Mote and the Lero Coupon Note, The retumn under the Performance Linked Note depends on
a retum linked to that of the Underlving Fund, the operating and financial performance of the
Performance Linked Noie Issuer and other factors which might affect the price of the Performance
Linked MNote. The retum under the Zero Coupon Note depends on the fluctuation of Australian dollars
vigld curve, the operating and financial performance of the Zero Coupon Note Issuer, and the other
factors which might affeet the price of the Zero Coupon Note,

The nature and extent of the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period and
the nsk management policies employed by the Series Trust are discussed below,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AU

MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended 30 November 2020

13, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)

(a) Market risk

Market risk 15 the risk that the value of financial assets will Duetuate as a result of changes in market

prices whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual assets or factors affecting
all assets in the market.

The Series Trust is exposed o markel rsk on ils investments as the redemption value of the
Performance Linked Mote s linked to predetermined mles to that of the Underlying Fund, and.
therefore, the volatility of the portfolio. This nsk is mitigated in part by the Zero Coupon MNote being
redeemed on their scheduled maturity date of 29 September 2023 at 100% of their principal amount,

The portfolio of the Underlying Fund comprised the following margin allocation (unaudited):

Market Sector % Margin % Margin

2020 2012
Rase Metals T1.5% 9.6%
Bonds 13.4% 15.9%
Crops 12.8% 6.9%
Currencics 11.0% 14.3%
Encrgics 11.5% 9.3%
Equity Indices 5. 2% 19, 2%
Livestock 1.5% 1.1%
Precious Metals 20.7% 16.4%
Rates T.4% T.53%
Tutal 10:0L.0% 100.0%

fi)  Foreign enrrency risk

Forcign currency risk is the nisk that the value of financial asscts or liabilities will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates. Units issued by the Series Trust are denominated in AU and units
are only ssued and redesmed i that currency. The majority of the assels of the Senes Trust are
invested in the Motes which are denominated in ALUT.

The Series Trust s exposed o foreign currency nsk (o the extent that the Performance Linked Note
has exposure to currency risk as the Underlving Fund to which they are linked will reflect the
component investments which are traded in currencics other than AU, Accordingly, the value of the
portfolio and, therefore, the value of the Performance Linked Note may be affected favorably or
unfavorably by fuctuations in currency rates.

At 30 November 2020 and 20019, the Senes Trust also has exposure to currency nisk because it has
assets and liabilitics denominated in currencies other than the AUD,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AU

MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended 30 November 2020

13, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)
i) Foreign currency risk (continied)
The Series Trust's currency exposure of net asscts was as follows:

Analysis of assets and habihibes by curency (lotals presented i AUTY based on 30 Movember 2020
and 2019 exchange rates):

As at 30 November 2020 Py LS GEP AUD Total
AUD

Assels
Fimancial assets at fair value through profit

of loss - - - 154,643,424 154,643,424
Amount due from broker . i _ 2089776 LOBXTTG
Cash and cash equivalents 582402 07205 88,505 5403374 7,481,576
Total assets ART402 47,205 15,595 163,136,574 164,214,776
Liabilities
Redemption payable . = = 5,025,930 5025930
Acoouris payable and acerued liabilities 8724 R A4 ETT 03601
Total liabilities - SH,7M - 5,170,807 5220531
Net currensy exposure 581402 348,481 88,595 IST965T67 158985245
s o 30 November 201% PY UsD GBP AUD Totl

AUD

Assels
Financial assets st far value through profit

or boss . . . 174,184,892 174,184,992
Redemphion fee recervable - - - 34,700 24,700
Amount due from broker . ; . 913,590 913,590
Cash and cash equival ents 636,213 920047 93548 1,701 85 4361564
Total assets 636,213 529947 93545 i 18 150,084,846
Liabilities
Redemption payable - - - 2,523 %09 2,523,599
Accounts payable and accrued hiobilies - 57.4%6 - 179,631 IIT067
Tertad Liabulities . 57,436 . 2,703,230 2, 7644
Met currency exposire 63213 472,511 93,5458 176,01 21,%08 177,324, 150
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AU

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2020

=
fad

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

fi)  Feregn currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengtheming of the AUTY agamst the followng currencies at 30 Movember 2020 and 2019
would have decreased inereased net assets by the amounts shown below. This sensitivily analysis

represents management’s best estimate of a reasonable possible change and assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rales, remain constant.

Net Assels Mel Assels

2020 2009

AUD AL

Py 58,240 063621
s 34848 47.251
GBP B.860 2355

A 10% weakening of the AUD against the above currencies at 30 November 2020 and 2019 would
have had the equal but epposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the
basis that all sther vanables remam constani.

Those investors whose financial assets are measured in currencics other than the AUD will be cxposed
to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Even when the net asset value of units of the Series Trust is
greater than the principal intially invested in AUD, the net asset value may have decreased in terms
of the mvestors” currencies.

i) Price risk

Price nsk arses mamly from uncertamty about future prices of financial instruments held, which are
classified as “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™, It represents the potential loss the
Series Trust might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements,

Investments in the Motes are valued at the close of cach valuation day at a price provided by the
Caleulation Agenl For the purpose of the published Net Assel Value, the price provided by the
Calculation Agent is treated as conclusive by the Manager, the Trustee, and the Trustee's Delegate.

Price risk of the Series Trust anises from price fuctuations of the Performance Linked Note, These
price fluctuations arise as a resull of changes in the volatility of the managed commoditics futures
which will have an effect on the value of the predetermined rules to that of the Underlving Fund.
These Muetuations will be reflected in the price of the Performance Linked Note and will affeet the
Serics Trust's net asset value.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AU

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2020

-
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Market rizk (continued)
i) Price risk feontinued)

The retumn on the units depends on changes in values of a portfolie including the Underlying Fund.
The trading price of the unils may vary considerably before the maturity date due. among other things,
tor Mluctuations in the price of the managed commodities futures that make up the Underlving Fund and
other events, The unils are not equivalent to investing directly in the Underlyving Fund,

A 1% merease in the managed commaodities futures fund at 30 November 2020 and 2019, with all
other variables held constant, will inerease the Series Trust's nel assel value and profits by
approzimately AUTLOGS (2009 AUDS386). A 1% decrease in the managed commoditics futures
fund at 30 November 2020 and 2019, with all other variables held constant, will decrease the Series
Trust’s net asset value and profits by approximately AU 069 (2019 AUDE.386). This sensitivity

analysis represents management’s best eshimale of a reasonable possible change,
Some limitations of sensitivity analysis arc:

s the market price risk information is a relative estimate of risk rather than a precise and accurate
number:

* the market price information represents a hypothetical oufcome and s not intended to be
predictive; and,

o future market conditions can vary significantly from those experienced in the past.

{ire) Interest rafe risk

Interest rate nsk is the risk that the value of financial instruments and future cash flows will fluctuate
as a result of changes in market interest rates,

A 1% increase in the Australian dollar vield corve at 30 Kovember 20200 and 2019, with all other
variables held constant, will decrease the Series Trust’s financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and comsequently the net asset value and profits by approximately AUDI IR0384 (2009;
AUDG001L608)L A 1% decrease in the Australian dollar vield curve at 30 November 2020 and 2009,
with all other vanables held constant, will increase the Series Trust's net asset value by approximately
AUDS 180384 (2019: AUDGO01.608). This sensitivity analysis represents management’s best
estimate of a reasonable possible change,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AU

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2020

-
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (continwed)

(a) Market risk (continued)
fits) Interest rate risk {comfinmed)

The Series Trust is exposed to interest rate risk on its cash and cash equivalents, which are placed in
interest bearing accounts. The amount of cash and cash equivalents held at 30 November 2020
amounts to 4.71% (2019 2.80%0) of the Seres Trust's net asset value. The sensitivity 1o changes in
interest rates on these amounts and their consequent impact of the Series Trust’s net asset value is
considered not to be material. It is not the policy of the Series Trust to retain cash except to cover
anticipated costs, however the cash position at the reporting date includes amounts held to pay short
term repurchases. The sensitivity 1o a 1%(2019: 1%) movement in the Australian dollar and US dollar
interest rates at 30 Movember 20000 is highly unlikely to result in a significant increase in interest
carned on cash held and management have assessed that any potential increase or decrease in the
Series Trust's total assets and profit is not considered to be material. This sensitivity analysis
represents management’s best estimate of a reasonable possible change.

(b) Credit risk

Credit nsk anses from financial instruments, cash and cash equivalents and deposits with financial
institutions and banks, The Series Trust is subject to a significant concentration of credit risk as it is
exposed to financial instruments issued by a single instifution and maintains cash and cash equivalents
wilh a single bank.

Credit risk relates to the extent to which failures by counterparties to discharge their obligations could
reduce the amount of future cash flows from financial instruments on hand as at the reporting date.

The ability to manage the credit risk 15 himited as a result of the Series Trust’s staled mvestment
objectives which require that it invests on a 1:1 basis between a Zero Coupon Mote issued by Signum
Momentum Limited and Performance Linked Note issued by Quartix Financial Products 11 Limited
and its cash amd cash equivalents are placed with the Serics Trust™s Trustee and its affiliated entitics
willin the Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Group. In addition, the Caleulation Agent
of the Note s Goldman Sachs International. Thas credit risk s managed on the basis that these hinancial
institutions and banks are independently rated with a minimuem rating of * A" or its cquivalent.

Credit risk disclosures are segmented inlo two seclions based on whether the underlying financial
instrument is subject to [FRS 9°s impairment disclosures or not.

Financial assets subject to [FRS 9’5 impairment requirements

The Series Trust's financial assets subject to the expected credit loss model within [FRS 9 are only
amount due from broker and cash and cash equivalents, At 30 November 2020, the total of amount
due from broker and cash and cash cquivalents was AUDSST million, on which no loss allowance
had been provided (30 Movember 2019 total of AU 90 million on which no loss had been incurred),
There is not considered to be any concentration of credit risk within these assets. No assels are
considered impaired and no amounts have been written off in the period.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AU

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2020
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (continuwed)

(b} Credat risk {continued)

Finonetal assets not subfect fo [FRS 9's impairment requirements

The Seres Trust is exposed to credit nsk on its financial instruments. These classes of inancal assets
arc not subject to IFRS 975 impaimment requirements as they are measured at FVPL. The camryving value
of these assets represents the Series Trusts maximum exposure to credit risk on financial instruments
not subject to the IFRS 9 impairment requirements on the respective reporting dates. Henee, no
separate maximum exposurs to credit risk disclosure is provided for these instruments.

O 19 February 2021, the Caleulation Agent was rated A+/A-1 by 5 & P Global Hatings™, AVP-1 by
Moody™s and A+TF1 by Fitch Ratings, In addition, the Series Trust’s cash and cash equivalents are
placed with The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, which was rated a1 AA-/A-
1+ by 5 & P Global Ratings", Aa3/P-1 by Moody's and AA-F1+ by Fiteh Eatings on 19 Febnuary
2021, The Performance Linked Notes Issuer and Zero Coupon MNotes Issuer are not rated,

(¢} Liguidity risk

Liquidity misk is the rsk that the Series Trust will encounter difficulty in raising funds o mect
commitments associated with financial assets, Liguidity rizk may result from an inability to sell a
financial asset quickly at an amount close to its fair value.

Under the terms of the offering. the Series Trust's unitholders may request for their units to be
repurchased on each repurchase day of the Series Trusl. The Manager will then redeam a proportion
of the Motes held by the Senes Trust to fund the umt repurchase. The Motes can be sold before their
maturity date at close to their fair value by the provision of one month's notice. The redemption terms
for the underlying Motes are paid to the unitholders within twenty-three business days from the
corresponding repurchase day. thus allowing settlement from the partial sale of the Motes to be seitled
before the redemplion proceeds are due to be paid o the unitholders. The Series Trust is exposed to
liguidity risk as the Notes in which the Senies Trust invests may not allow the Series Trust to redeem
its unils readily,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2020
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (continwed)

() Ligquidity risk {continued)
A summary of the analyses s as follows:

I menthte 3 months
Less than less than 3 to less than More than 1
As at 30 November 2020 1 month months 1 vear year Total
AUD AL AL ALD AUD
Asseis:
Fmanecial assels at fair
value through profit or

loss 154,643.424 - - - 154,643,424
Amount due from broker 2089776 - - - 2,089,776
Cash and cash equivalents 1481576 - - - TA81.576
Taotal asscts 164,214,776 - - - 164,214,776
Liakhilities:

Redemption payvable 5,025,930 - - - 5,025,930
Accounts pavable and

accrued liabilitics 203,601 - - - 203,601

Total liabilities 5220531 - - - 5229531

I month o 3 months
Lessthan  lessthan 3 to less than  More than 1
As at 30 November 2019 1 month months 1 year year Total
AUD ALY ALY ALUD ALUD

Asspls:
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or

loss 174,184,992 - = 174184902
Redemption fee receivable 24,700 - - - 24,7700
Amount dug from broker 913,590 - - - 913,59
Cash and cazh equivalents 4,961,564 - - - 4,961,504
Tuotal assets 180,054,846 - - - 180,084,846
Liahilities:

Redemption pavahle 2,523,599 - - - 2,523,590
Accounts pavable and

acerued liabilitics 237067 - - - 237,067

Total liabilities 2,760,666 - - - 2,760,666
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AU

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2020

14, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Manager considers the capital of the Series Trust to comprise the net proceeds from subscriptions
fior and redemptions of units of the Series Trust.

The Series Trust invests virually all of iis assets in accordance with the investment objective (which
was stated in Mote 1) of the Senes Trust and the investment management policy is non-discretionary.

There are no regulatory or stalulory i.‘.npil,:ll requirements to which the Senies Trust must comply with.

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Manager is responsible under the Amended and Restated Master Trust Deed for the management
of the mvestment and re-investment of the assets of the Senes Trust, the exercise of the power to
borrow money in respect of the Series Trust, declare and direct the Trustee to make distributions or
interim distributions to the unitholders out of the income and/'or the capital of the Series Trust and for
the 1ssue and repurchase of umits of the Senes Trust.

The Trustes is responsible under the Amended and Restated Master Trust Deed for the administration
of the Series Trust and for keeping the register of wnitholders,

All the related partics are entitled to receive fees and expenses oul of the assets of the Series Trust,
[Details of these fees are set out in Nole O to the financial statements,

16, FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirely should be determined on the basis of the lowest level input that i significant to the fir value
measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an inpul is assessed against the fair
value measurement in its enfiretv, IF a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require
significant adjustment based on uwnobservable inputs, that measurement iz a level 3 measurement.
Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirely requires
Judgment, considenng factors speafic o the asset or hability.

The determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the Manager. The
Manager considers observable data to be market data that is readily available. regularly distributed or
updated, reliable and venfiable, not proprictary, and provided by independent sources that are actively
invalved in the relevant market.

The Series Trust’s financial assets are not quoted in active markets, such as the performanee linked
notes, Fair values of such assets are determined by the Caleulation Agent using valuation models in
accordance with the term sheets, Such models are not based entirely on observable data as a result the
Series Trust's financial assets are all classified within level 3. Atable showing the split of the unguoted
investments between level 1, Tevel 2 and level 3 has not been included as the financial assets are all
classified as level 3.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF

WINTON 15-10 (AU

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2020

16,

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION {continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year ended 30 November 2020,

There were no transfers into or out of the level 3 measurement duning the vear,

Novem ber 1]

Balance as at 1 December 2019
Disposals during the year:

Proceeds from sale

Mel realised gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Met change in unrcalised loss on financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Balance at 30 Novem ber 2020

Taotal loss for the period included in profit or loss for
assets held at the end of the reporting period

30 Novem ber 20019

Balamee as at 1 Deceamber 2018
Disposals during the year:

Proceeds from sale

Net realised gain on financial assets at fair value through profil or loss
Met change in unreahsed gain on hnancial assets at for value

through profit or loss

Balance at 30 Novem ber 2009

Total gain for the period included in profit or loss for
assets held at the end of the reporting period

Led
Lad
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174,184,992

(19,387,935)
308,575

(752.208)

154,043,424

(133.633)

AL
182,385,002

(17.508,885)
293,215

9.0 5.660

174,184,902

2,310,875
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AU

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 November 2020

17. SIGNIFICANT EVENT
There were no other significant events during the vear ofher than those discussed below:
The outbreak of Coronavirs disease (“COVID-19 owtbreak) in carly 2020 has had significant impact
on global financial markets, The manager will pav close attention to the development of the COVID-
19 cuthreak and evaluate its impact on the financial position and operating results of the Series Trust.
18. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Subsequent to the reporting date and up to the date of approval of these financial statements, 8,250,000
redeemable units in a tolal redemption amount of AUTYS 455,937 were redeemed from the Senes
Trust. Further orders for the redemption of 690,000, 1,860,000, 2,980,000, 2,530,000 and 3,040,000
redeemable units will be traded at 16 February 2021, 01 March 2021, 16 March 2021, 01 Apnl 2021
and 16 April 2021, respectively once the prices at these dates are available.
There were no other matenal events after the end of reporting perod up to the date of authonsation of
these linancial statements,

19, APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustee and Manager on 30
April 2021,
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2021
147,430,641.59 12,437,249
5,197,570.59 438,467
142,233,071.00 11,998,782
139,400,000
1.0203 86
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2021 17
11

415,712,371.87

306,709,192.87

143,686,637.56

63,660,491,125
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1Q EQ
2019 12 31
2019 2018
2,133,979 236,253 2,776,023 307,334
442,373 48,975 108,904 12,057
2,576,352 285,228 2,884,927 319,390
(2,009,880) (222,514)
2,576,352 285,228 875,047 96,876
2,576,352 285,228 875,047 96,876
11 750,000 83,033 750,000 83,033
1,826,352 202,195 125,047 13,844
2,576,352 285,228 875,047 96,876

2020

117/197



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1Q EQ
2019 12 31
2019 2018
2,940,188 325,508 3,563,356 394,499
2,940,188 325,508 3,563,356 394,499
(974,634) (107,902) (3,303,296) (365,708)
(256,294) (28,374) 251,507 27,854
1,709,260 189,232 511,657 56,646
6 1 14 2
(7,961) (881) (4,415) (489)
(7,955) (881) (4,401) (487)
1,701,305 188,351 507,256 56,158
1,701,305 188,351 507,256 56,158
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IQ EQ

2019 12 31

2018 750,000 83,033 367,791 40,718 1,117,791 123,751
507,256 56,158 507,256 56,158
507,256 56,158 507,256 56,158
(750,000) (83,033) (750,000) (83,033)
(750,000) (83,033) (750,000) (83,033)

2018 12 31 750,000 83,033 125,047 13,844 875,047 96,876

2019 750,000 83,033 125,047 13,844 875,047 96,876
1,701,305 188,351 1,701,305 188,351
1,701,305 188,351 1,701,305 188,351

2019 12 31 750,000 83,033 1,826,352 202,195 2,576,352 285,228
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IQ EQ
2019 12 31
2019 2018
12 341,424 37,799 468,437 51,861
341,424 37,799 468,437 51,861
6 1 14 2
6 1 14 2
(7,961) (881) (4,415) (489)
(750,000) (83,033)
(7,961) (881) (754,415) (83,521)
333,469 36,918 (285,964) (31,659)
108,904 12,057 394,868 43,716
442,373 48,975 108,904 12,057
442,373 48,975 108,904 12,057

442,373 48,975 108,904 12,057
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IQ EQ

2019 12 31

1Q EQ

102
102

102 2019

50

2019 12 31
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IQ EQ

IQEQ

2020

12



0.2
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2019 2018

5,417
256,294 (251,597)
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2019 2018 12 31 IQEQ
IQEQ
IQEQ

2019 2018

6 14

6 14
2019 2018

(7,961) (4,415)

(7,961) (4,415)
2019 2018

6 14

(7,961) (4,415)

(7,955) (4,401)

2035
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2019 2018
377,786 317,110
1,749,603 2,458,913
6,590
2,133,979 2,776,023
2019 2018
2,007,320
2,560
12 31 2,009,880
2019 2019 2018 2018
377,786 317,110
1,749,603 2,458,913
442,373 108,904
2,569,762 2,884,927
(2,007,320)
(2,009,880)
2019 2018
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1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
750,000 750,000 750,000
12
2019 2018
1,701,305 507,256
7,955 4,401
1,709,260 511,657
642,044 221,237
(2,009,880) (264,457)
341,424 468,437
2019 2019 2019
12 31
108,904 326,060 7,409 442,373
108,904 326,060 7,409 442,373
13
102
33.1
14
1Q
EQ
2019 12 31

15
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Balance sheat
As at 31 December 2018

e 2018
Mote usos usos
Currant assats
Dabinrs and prapaymants & 2133979 2,778,023
Cash at bark and in hand 4432 373 108,904
2,578,352 2,884 527
Craditors: amounts falling due
within ona yaar g - {2,000 880}
Mot current sssate 2,576,362 B7E, 04T
Mat Assets 2,678,362 8TE 04T
Capital and resarves
Calied up sham capitel 11 750,000 750,000
Retained eamings 1,828,382 125,047
Eguity stiribulabile io owners of the parent 2,576,352 875,047

The notes on pages O to 18 farm part of tha financial sistemants,

Tha financial statements on pagas § to 18 were approved by the Boand of Direciors on 6 Augult 2020 and sigresd
ar it behalf by:

r
e
i . A

—
i
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Statement of comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2018

09 2018

Notes usog usDg

Tumaver 2,540,188 3,563,356
Cost of salos - -
Gross profit 1,840,188 3,883,388
Administrative expenses (EBT4,834) (3,303,296)
Otther oparating (icssss)paina (255, 294) 251,587
Operating profit 4 1,708,260 511,887
Interest recaivable and simiar income Ga & 14
Indsrest payable and similar charges Bb (7,961) (4,415}
et intarast payabia fc (7,866) {4, 401)
Profit on ordinary activities befors taxation 1,701,308 507,258
T on profit on ordinary activities T - -
Profit for the financlal year 1,701,305 507,256

All results derive from continuing operations.

Tha notes on peges 8 to 18 form part of tha financial siatermants,
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as
Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Staterment of changes in equity

As at 31 December 2018
Calledup  Retained
share capital gamings Talal Faulty
usos usos usDs
Balanca as at 1 January 2018 750,000 367,791 1,117,701
Profit for the year - 507,256 507 2568
“Tolal comprehensive income for the year P EO7 256 BOT 258
Dividends - (750,000} (750,000}
Total transactions with ownars, recognised directly
in equity - {750,000} {T50,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 750,000 125,047 BT5,047
Balance as at 1 January 2019 750,000 125,047 BT5,047
Profit for the year - 1,701,308 1,701,306
Tolal com income for the . 1,701,305 1,701,305
Total ransactions with owners, recognised directly ] _ X
Jn squity
Balance &8 at 31 December 2019 750,000 1,826,352 1,578,352

Tha notes on pages 9 to 18 form part of tha financial statements.
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as
Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Staterment of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Nots 2018 2018

usoDg ushDs

Net cash from operating activities 12 1,424 488 437
Texation pald - -
Nat cash generated from opsrating activities 341,434 488 437
Cash flow from investing activities
Intarast recaivad [ ] 14
Net cash used in investing activities ] 14
Cash flow from financing activities
Irterast pakd (7,961} (4.415)
Dividends paid - {750,000)
Nat cash used In financing activitias (7 861} {754,415}
Nat Increasa/{decraasa) In cash and cash equivalonts 333,459 (285,964)
Cagh and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 108,804 304 868
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year, 442,373 108,904
Cazh and cash squivalents consints of:
Cash &t bank and in hand 442,373 108 904
ol of cash and cash squivalsnts 442373 108,904

The notes on pagas 9 to 18 form part of tha financial statemaents,
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the ysar ended 31 December 2015

1

Summary of compliance

The indhvidual financial statements of IC EQ Management Bermuda Limited (farmarly known as Moors
Management (Bermuda) Limied) (the "Company”) have been prepared in compliance with United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Stardard 102, "The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of lreland” ("FRS 1027).

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies appliad in the preparation of these financial stataments ane sat out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years prasantad, unlass ctharwisa
stated.

(a) Basls of preparation

Thase financial statements are prepared on & going concem basis, under the hislorical cost convention,
as modified by the recognition of cartain financial assets and Habilities measurad at fair value,

Tha praparation of financial statemants requires the use of cartaln critical sccounting estimates. | also
requires management to exercise [is judgement in the process of applying the Group and Company
accounting policies,

Tha Company have early adopted the amendmants of FRS 102 as a result of the triennial review, which
are effective from 1 January 2018,

(b} Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by tha Group. Control is the power to govarn the financial and
operating policies of an entity 50 as 1o oblain benefs from its acthvities. Whem thie Group cwns less
than 50% of the voting powess of an entity but controls the entity by virtue of an agresmant with other
investors which give it contrel of the finenclal and operating policies of the antity § sccounts for that
entity a5 a subsidiary,

Any gubsidiary undertakings or associales sold or acquired during the For the year ended 31 Decambar
2018 are included up to, or from, the date of change of conirol or change of significant influenca

Where control of a subsidiary is lost, the gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The curmulative amounts of any exchange differences on translation, recognised in equity,
ara not included in the gain or loss on disposal and ane transfermad 1o retainad samings. Tha gain or
leas also incledes amounts incheded in other comprehensive income that ane requined to be reclassified
fo profit or loss bul exciudes those amaounts that are not required 1o be reclassified.
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Motes to the financial statements
For the year anded 31 December 2018 (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies - {continued)

{b) Consolidation {continued)

Al intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consoidation.
{c}] Going Concamn

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequale resounces lo continue in
oparational axistence for the foraseaable fuuture, and have adopted tha going concermn basis of
accounting In prepading the financial stalements.

The Company is part of the 1Q EQ Group and overall debt funding s managed at @ 10 EQ Group level,
Tha financa structure has been dasignad to accommaodate this growth by capitalising the inferest on the
convertible prefarmed equity cerificates ("CPEC"s"). There are significant non-recuring costs which
mainly relats to the acquisition, intagration and project developmant costs, all of which are focusad on
tha growth of the IC EQ Group and can be put on hold to preserve 10 EQ Group cash.

Ir light of the Covid-18 pandemic the Direciors have considered the impact on treding and operations of
the Company. This has incleded heightened assessment of the going concern assumption. The
Diractors have implemantad the following:

= Additional Cowvid-19 specific govemanoe

= Rapidly implamented a remoie working approach for all staff to maintain business activity

= Enhanced cost and cash management to manage cutgoings to maintain meargin to budget levels to
counter impact on group revenuss

- Enhanced reporting on key areas such as chargeability, billing and cash genaration

Tha Company continues io produce managemant reporting in line with normal imetables. Trading
contribution and EBITDA margins for the first half of 2020 are below budgel and 2018 however the

company remains profitable and cash ganerative.

Financial projections have baan prepared of tha operating parformance and cash ganeration of tha
Company In light of potential scenarios driven by the Covid-18 pandemic. These projections are based
on assumplions induding the future oparating performanca of the Company; thay demonstrate that tha
Company has the abifty lo continue fo Irade with & reasonable level of cash headroom for 12 months

from the date of signing thesa financial statermants,
Having considened the various assumptions utiised for the forecast and their effect on the Company’s

frading, the Directors believe that the Company will continue in operational existence for tha
foreseeable future.
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Motes to the financial statements
(continuad)

Summary of significant accounting policies - {continued)
(d) Forslgn currency

()  Functional and presaniational currency
The Company's functional and presentational currency Is United States Dolars (§).

{1 Trensactions and balances

Forsign currancy transactions are translated inlo the functional cumency of tha untdardying entities Using
the spol exchange rale al the dales of the ransactions.

At sach pariod and, foreign currency monetary itema are transksted using the closing rate. Non-
manelary hems measured at historical cost are trenslated using the exchange rete at the date of the
franeaction and non-mansetary items measured at fair vajue are measured using the exchangs rate
‘whan fair valus was daterminad.

Foraign schangs gains and lossas rasulting from tha sstiamaent of transactions and from the
franstation al period-end exchange rates of monelary sssets and labilities denominated in foreign
cumencies are recognised In the incoma statement within ‘Foralgn exchange (loss)igain.’

(e} Revenus recognition

Revenue is measured al the fair value of the consideration received or receable in respect of sendces
randerad from the provision of adminisiration, corporale managament, irustes sarvices togethes with
andillary services, ned of any discounts and rebates allowed by the Company, and company value
added taxes. Revenue Is recognised on an accruals basis, with deferral of any cash recelved In
advance. Deferred income is raleased fo tha income statemant over tha period to which it relates,
Other revenue itarms relate to;

) Interest income
Imtanast incoma is recognisad on an accruals basis.

(i) Dividend income
Dividend income ks recognised when the righl to recelve payment ks eslabished.

{iii) Management recharge incomelaxpense
Management recharges are cakulated based on the services provided and costs incurred byffrom
subsidianies and othes group companies during the year.

) Managemeant fees

Management feas are recaived fram the investment funds under management as compensation for the
management services provided by the Company. Management fees vary from 0.0 75% per quarter to
0.2% per quarter of aither the product of the initial unit prica and the number of units in Bsus at a
‘Valuation Day coinciding with a Dealing Day, or of the Net Asset Valus (all as definad in the Offering
Memoranda andlor Appendices of the relevant investment funds) for all funds. In some cases, these
management fees are subject to a minimum andfor an additional fixad fee also edsts.
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Motes to the financlal statemants
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)
(s} Revenus recognition (continued)

(v} Consultancy feas

Consultancy fees are neceived from the investment funds under management for services provided by
the Compary nalating to the sat up or lermination of an investment fund or sub fund. Such fees am
datarminad on a casa-by-case basis.

() Administrative axpanses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and included within operating expenditune.
{g) Provislona and contingencles

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a prasant lagal or constructive obligation as a rasull
of past events; it s probable that an outflow of resowrces will be required to satthe the obligation; and the
amount of the obligation can be estimatad rekably.

(h) Impaimmant of non-financial assats

At each balance sheet date, non-financial assets not camied al fair value are assessed 1o determine
whathar thara (& an indication thal the assat may ba Impaired. If thiare (& such an indication, the
recoverable amount of the asset is compared to the camying amount of the assel.

Tha recoverable amouni of the asset is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Valus in use is defined as tha presant valus of the future pre-tax and intaras! cash flows obtainables as a
regull of the assets continued use. Tha pre-tax and interest cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax
discount rale that represents the current market risk-free rate and the risks inherent in the asset

If the recoverable amount of the azsel is estimated to be lower than the earmying amount, the camying
amount is reducaed to its recowsralde amount, An impairmant loss is racognised in the income
statemant, uniess the asset has been revalued when the amounts is recognised in other
comprehensiva income o the extenl of any previously recognised revaluation. Thereafter any excess is
recognisad in tha incoms statemant.

If an impairment loss ks subssgquently revarsed, the carmying amount of the assel is increased fo the
renvised estimate of ils recoverabla amount but only to the exdent that the revised carmying amount does.
nol exceed tha carmying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no
impaimment loss been recognised in prior periods. A reversal of an impaimment loss is recognised in the
income statament.

(1} Financlal Instruments

The Company has chosen io adopl Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statemants
For the year endad 31 December 2019 (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies - ([continuad)

() Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including amounts dus from group undartakings ane intially recognised at the
iransaction price. Finenclal assets are derecognised when () the contractual rights io the cash flows
from the asset expire or are settled, or (b) substantiaily all the rigics and rewards of tha ownanship of the
asset are transferred lo another party or () despite having retained some significant risks and rewards
of ewnership, contral of the asset has been ransfermed to another party who has the practical ability to
uniisterally sall the asset to an unralated third party without imposing additional restrictions.

(1) Financial llabiities

Baslc finendal llabfiies, including amounts owed to group undertakings and other payables are initialy
recognisad at transaction prica, unkass the amangament constitules a financing transaction, whars tha
dabt instrument is measured al the presanl value of the huture payments (net of directly altribitable
issua costs) discounted at the marked rate of interest. [ssue costs are recognised in the incoma
statement over the term of the debt on an effective interes! rate basis.

Debt instruments are subsaquently carried at amortisad cost, using tha efactive intarast rate method.

Financial liabilties are derscognised whan the liabiity is axtinguished, that is whan tha comtractual
obligation is discherged, cancelled or expines.

(i) Offsetting
Financial asssis and labiitias are offsat and the nat amourts prezentad on the financial statements

‘when there is & legally enforceable right to set off the recognition amounts and there is an intention o
saitle on a nat basis or to realiss the assel and settle the liability simuaneausly.

(k} Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity, Incramantal costs directly atiributabile to the issus of new
ordinary shares or options are shown in aquity as a deduction, nat of tax, from the proceads.

(1) Dintributions to equity holders

Dividends and other distributions to the Company's shareholders ane recognised as a Rability in the
financial statemants in the pericd in which the dividends and other distributions ane approved by the
stakeholders. These amounts are recognised in the stalement of changes in equity.

{m) Related party transactions

The Company discloses transactions with related parties which are nol wholly owned within the same
group. Where appropriate, transactions of a similar natyre are aggregated unless, in the opinion of the

directors, separste disclosums is necessary o understand the affect of the irensaclions on the Company
financial statemants
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statemants
For the year endad 31 December 2019 (continued)

3 Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continually evalualed and are based on hislorical experience and other
factors, including expeciations of future events that are belleved to be reasonable under the
circumsaiances.

Koy accounting estimates and essumptiona

The Company makes estimates and assumplions conceming the future. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant rigk of causing a material adjustment to the carmying amounts of
assets and Eabilities within the nesd financial year are addressed below.

0 Accrsad incoma

Accrued income is made up of fees accrued ko the balance sheet date bul are yet to be billed which are
daamad 1o ba recovarable. Managemant assassed the astimated recoverabls valuas,

(i) Provigions

Provisions are made up of debtora, which are not deamed io be recoverable. Judgament is used by
management to assass the recoverability of deblors,

4 Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after charging/{crediting):

2018 2018

V20t ] usSD§

Direclors’ fees - 5417
F ing 258,294 (251,587)

For the years anded 31 Dacambar 2019 and 2018 the audit fee of the Company was paid by 10 EQ

Group Management (lale of Man) (formeady known as First Namas Managameni Limited), a related
enlity under common controd.

5 Employses and Directors
Key management compensation

Ky managemeant includes the directors and members of senior management. The compsnsation &
boma by ofther companies related by common confrod, primariy [Q EQ Barmuda Limited (formary
Dedphi Managament Limitad) and 1Q EQ Management (Jersey) Limited (formarly First Mamas
Managemant (Jersey) Limited} and is therefore not disciosed in thess financial statements,
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Annual report and financial statements

Motas to the financial statemants
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

& Hst intersst sxpenss
(@} Interest mcaived and similar income

2019 2018

uspy LSDS
Bank intarest racaiabla 8 14
Total interest receivable and similar incoms ] 14
(b} Interaat payable and aimilar charges

2019 2018

uso$ usD$
Other {7.881) {4415)
Total interest expense on financial Rabilities {7,581} 14415)
(c} Mat imterest axpense

2018 2018

Usps usns
Imtarest receivabla and similar incoma ] 14
Imierest payable and similar charges {7,561) {4, 4185)
Met intarsat sxpense [T.958) (4.401)

T Incoma Tax

Under curreni Barmuwda lews, the Company s nol required 10 pay any Laxes in Bermuda on either
income or capital gains. The Company has received an underlaking from the Minisler of Finance in

Bermuda axampting & from any such taxes at least until the year 2035,

g Debtors n1e 2018
usD$ UsDS

Amounts due within on year
Trada debtors and accrsed income 377,786 317110
Amounts owed by related 1.748,803 2,458,912
Prapayments 6.580 .
2,133,379 2,776,023

The amounts cwed by group undertakings are unsecured, inlerest free, have no fxed dabe of

rapayment and are repayabls on damand.
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Motes to the financial statemants
For the year ended 31 December 2015 [continued)

8 GCreditors 2018 2018
-t ] USDS

Amounts dus within one year
Amourts owed to related pardes . 2,007,320
Accruals and defered income . 2,560
At 31 December - 2,009,880

The amounts due to group underiakings are unsecured, interest free, have no foced date of repayment
and are repayable on demand.

10 Financlal Inatrumenta
Tha company has the following financial instrurments:

2018 2019 2018 2018
usD$ usoD$ usos USDS$
Firauricial assels that are measured af amortised
cost
Trade debtors 377,788 AT A0
Orther recaivables 1,748,603 2458913
Cash and cash equivalents 443,373 108 804 -
2,569,762 2,884 927

Financial liabiliias measured al amortised cost

Amounts owed to group
undarakings = (2,007,320)
- (2,009,880}
11 Share capital 2019 208
usog UsD$
Authorised
1,000,000 common shanes of USDS1 sach 1,000,000 1,000,000
lssued wnd fully paid
750,000 commaon shares of USD$1 each 750,000 750,000

Tha Company has one ciass of share capital which canies no right to fixed Income.
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statemants

Motes to the financlal staterments
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

12 MNotes to the statement of cash flows
Reconclllaton of oparating profit to net cash from cperating activitles

2019 2018
UsD§ USDS
Profit for the financial year 1,701,305 507,256
Adjustments for:
Nel interest expense 7,956 4401
Operating profit 1,708,260 511,857
Working capital movemants:
Dwcreasa in debtors and prepaymants 642,044 221,237
Decruase in paystles (2009880)  (264.457)
Cash flow from operating activities 341 424 468 437
Analysh of change In net funds
Cash al bank and in hand
At Cash flows Exchange As at
010112019 2019 mavaments Ealik k)
_Cash at bank 108,904 326,060 7408 442 373

Total 108,904 338,080 7409 442,373
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Notas to the financial statements
For the year anded 31 Decembar 2019 (continued)

13

14

15

Related party transactions
Other than note 4, tfransactions with other wholly owned subsidiaries retated by common control are not
disclosad as the Company has taken advantage of tha exemption in section 33.1A of FRS 102,

Controlling parties
Following the reafructure of the group, the Company's immediate parent underlaking is IQ EQ Group
Heldeo (Jarsay) Limitad (formady known as Moors Group Limited), a company incorporatad in Jarsay.

Az al 31 December 2018, the ullimate holding company inte wihich the results are consolidated is:
Saphilux Sarl (a Lineambourg antity).

Evanis after tha and of the mporting pardod

Inv light of the Covid-19 pandemic the Company in line with the UK Govemment advice and
recommeandations were quick to implamant a remote working approach for all staff to maintain business
aclivity. Due o the success of this i is the opinion of the Directors thet the company and Group will
ramain profitabls in a range of scanarios and conlinue o be cash ganarative, Further information an
the going concam has been noted in the Directors’ report.
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2020 2019 30

3,008,429 333,063 3,093,877 342,523

427,742 47,355 150,064 16,614
3,436,171 380,418 3,243,941 359,137

(719,341) (79,638)

3,436,171 380,418 2,524,600 279,498
3,436,171 380,418 2,524,600 279,498

750,000 83,033 750,000 83,033
2,686,171 297,386 1,774,600 196,466
3,436,171 380,418 2,524,600 279,498
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2020 2019
2020 30 30

1,208,418 133,784 1,467,746 162,494
1,208,418 133,784 1,467,746 162,494

(348,650) (38,599) (13,798) (1,528)
42 5 197,249 21,837
859,810 95,190 1,651,197 182,804
9 1 1 0

(1,645) (182)

9 1 (1,644) (182)
859,819 95,191 1,649,553 182,622
859,819 95,191 1,649,553 182,622
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IQ EQ

2020 30
2019 750,000 83,033 125,047 13,844 875,047 96,876
2019 30 1,649,553 182,622 1,649,553 182,622
1,649,553 182,622 1,649,553 182,622
2019 30 750,000 83,033 1,774,600 196,466 2,524,600 279,498
2019 12 31 51,752 5,729 51,752 5,729
51,752 5,729 51,752 5,729
2019 12 31 750,000 83,033 1,826,352 202,195 2,576,352 285,228
2020 750,000 83,033 1,826,352 202,195 2,576,352 285,228
2020 30 859,819 95,191 859,819 95,191

859,819 95,191 859,819 95,191

2020 30 750,000 83,033 2,686,171 297,386 3,436,171 380,418
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2020 30 2019 30
(7,499) (830) 45,442 5,031
(7,499) (830) 45,442 5,031

1 1
(1,645) (182)
(1,645) (182)
(7,490) (829) 43,798 4,849
442,373 48,975 108,904 12,057
(7,141) (791) (2,639) (292)
427,742 47,355 150,064 16,614
427,742 47,355 150,064 16,614
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2020 30

IQ EQ

102

100 IQ EQ

IQ EQ
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2020 2019
(42) (197,249)
2020 2019 12 31 IQEQ
2020 2019
9 1
9 1
2020 2019
(1,645)
(1,645)
2020 2019
9 1
(1,645)
9 (1,644)

2035
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2020 2019
395,821 303,450
2,609,313 2,787,132
3,295 3,295
3,008,429 3,003,877
2020 2019
713,339
6,002
719,341
2020 2019
395,821 303,450
2,609,313 2,790,427
427,742 150,064
3,432,876 3,243,941
(6,002)
(713,339)
(719,341)
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2020 2019
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
750,000 750,000 750,000
2020 2019
859,819 1,649,553
9) 1,644
7,141 2,638
866,951 1,653,835
(874,450) (317,854)
(1,290,539)
(7,499) 45,442
2020 2019
(7,490) 43,798
(7,141) (2,638)
442,373 108,904
30 427,742 150,064
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2020

30

2020 2020
30
442,373 (7,490) (7,141) 427,742
442,373 (7,490) (7,141) 427,742
102 331
1Q EQ
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1
(HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited)
2021 130 4,392
Q2
(HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited)
2021 5,000 1,200
2021 31
14.24
49
€
2021 20
4
2021 405
1

(¢

159/197



G

4

160/197

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



1.1 1993
1.2
1.3
(a 1993
(b 2020
1.4
1.5 2019 12
1.6
2.1

2.2
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1960

2020

2020
2020

CIMA
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2.3

(a

(b

(a

(b

(c
2.4 CIMA CIMA

CIMA
2.5 2020
15
CIMA
2.6
3.1
CIMA CIMA
CIMA CIMA
CIMA

3.2

CIMA
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(a
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3.4
4.1

21

4.2

(a
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CINA
®
®

CIMA 100,000

2020

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA CIMA

CIMA

CIMA
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5.2

5.3

5.4

(c

(d

(e

CIMA
21
2006 12 27
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
3.2 CIMA
CIMA

CIMA

CIMA
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5.5 CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
(a
(b
(c
(d
(e ) )
(
(
(A 17
(B 12
(C
5.6 CIMA
5.7 CIMA
5.8 CIMA 24,390
30,488
8,536
36,585 42,682
8,536
6.1
(a

¢
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2023 10 13
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Financial Products 11 Limited

2015 12

2015 20
2015 12
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Winton Capital
Management Limited

2013 10
Winton Group

Limited

Signum Momentum Limited
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Independent Auditor’ s Report

The Trustee

Philosophic 2 Investment Trust - Bond Plus Fund Linked to the Performance of

Winton 15-10 (AUD)

(A series trust of an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed and
Supplemental Trust Deed under the laws of the Cayman Islands)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Philosophic 2 Investment Trust - Bond Plus Fund
Linked to the Performance of Winton 15-10 (AUD) (the “ Trust” ) which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 30 November 2020, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Trust as at 30 November 2020 and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’ s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust
in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) and we have Tfulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Other information consists of the listing of management and administration. Management is
responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Trustee for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management 1is responsible for assessing the Trust’ s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
ligquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Trustee is responsible for overseeing the Trust’ s financial reporting process.

Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor
" s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.
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- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’ s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’ s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Trustee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.
Ernst & Young Ltd.

Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands

30 April 2021
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www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

Sapilux S.ar.l.

2020
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Independent auditor's report to the directors of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Report on the audit of the non-statutory financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited (the
‘company’):
e (give atrue and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of its profit
for the year then ended; and,
e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicablein
the UK and Republic of Ireland.

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements which comprise:
e the statement of comprehensive income;
e the baance shest;
e the statement of changesin equity;
e the cash flow statement; and
e therelated notes 1 to 15.

The financia reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the non-statutory financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the non-statutory financial statementsin the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's (the
'FRC'S) Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Conclusions relating to going concern
We arerequired by |SAs (UK) to report in respect of the following matters where:
e thedirectors use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the non-statutory financial
statements is not appropriate; or
e thedirectors have not disclosed in the non-statutory financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the company's ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at |east twelve months from the date when the non-
statutory financial statements are authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Directors report, other than the non-statutory financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. Our opinion on the non-statutory financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the non-statutory financia statements, our responsibility isto read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the non-
statutory financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the non-statutory financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thereis a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the non-statutory financial statements and for being satisfied that they give atrue and fair
view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is hecessary to enable the preparation of non-
statutory financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the non-statutory financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsihilities for the audit of the non-statutory financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the non-statutory financial statementsasa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranceis ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with | SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
non-statutory financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the non-statutory financial statementsislocated
on the FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsihbilities. This description forms part of our auditor's

report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely for the exclusive use of the directors and solely for the purposes of providing the
Directors with an audit opinion on the financial statements of the company that will be used in the
consolidation of its ultimate holding company, Sapilux S.ar.l. Our report is not to be used for any other
purpose, recited or referred to in any document, copied or made available (in whole or in part) to any other
person without prior written express consent. We accept no duty, responsibility or liability to any other party
in connection with the report or this engagement.

Deloitte LLP
St Peters Port, Guernsey
6 Aug 2020
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